MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL, HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL, TUESDAY, APRIL 19TH, 1927 AT 8:00 P.M.

Present: His Worship Mayor Morden

Alderman Anderson
Alderman Bridgman
Alderman Cartwright
Alderman Irwin
Alderman Townsley
Alderman White

The Minutes of regular meeting of Council, held April 4th, 1927, copies of which had previously been supplied each member of the Council were taken as read and on motion of Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Townsley, adopted.

Moved by Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the congratulations of this Council e extended to Mr. Herbert Morden of the North Shore Press on the occasion of his marriage, wishing him much happiness.

Mr. Horn of Shingle Mill at the foot of Forbes Avenue was present and addressed the Council stating that the President of his Company is sick but as soon as he is able to be around arrangements will be made to finance the construction of another burner to eliminate the sawdust nuisance.

The Solicitor stated that one difficulty in the matter is that in 1924 a burner had been constructed at cost of \$15,000.00. The Horn mill has closed down today awaiting the outcome of the meeting tonight.

Being pressed for definite date on which arrangements would be made for the construction of a burner; Mr. Horn stated that until the President of the Company was able to be up he could not give a definite date.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the matter of sawdust nuisance be left in the hands of the Mayor and Solicitor but that definite arrangements must be made before mills re-open.

Dr. Moffatt was present, requesting permission to resubdivide lots 25 and 26, Block 29, D.L. 550 north east corner 10th and St. Andrew's he wishing to erect three bungalows facing south and subdivide the 100 feet into three lots facing south.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the above request be referred to Committee of the Whole.

The regular order of business was then proceeded with.

Correspondence was received, read and dealt with as follows:

From the Registrar, County Court, Vancouver, being receipt for registration of Bylaws numbered 814 to 835 inclusive.

Filed.

From Pansy M. Murphy, Secretary, I.O.D.E. Captain Oates Chapter inquiring as to the possibility of having water service in the Cemetery to the Returned Soldiers plot, it being the intention of the Chapter to have the graves kept in a more appropriate condition and also requesting if available, any shrubs for beautifying the plot.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Irwin and resolved that the above request be referred to the Parks Committee with power to act.

From Mrs. Jane Harbottle, 242 – 25th Street West, applying to have the lane in Block 227 improved.

Referred to the Board of Works and Engineer for report.

From First Church of Christ, Scientist, applying for concrete sidewalk around their property.

Referred to Board of Works and Engineer for report.

From J.W. Fugler, Sanitary Inspector reporting that one of the Garbage team horses has gone lame. The Vet. Certifies that he will not be any further ruse on City streets. The sanitary Inspector recommends that the horse be sold at New Westminster and a new horse purchase to replace him.

Moved by Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Anderson and d that the above report and recommendation be received and adopted.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that Alderman Cartwright and Alderman Anderson be appointed to cooperate with the Sanitary Inspector in disposing of the old horse and purchasing a new horse.

From the Sanitary Inspector, stating that the garbage department will endeavour to make two trips each month during the summer up Hamilton Avenue, along Cumberland Crescent, down Fell Avenue clearing up Seaford Terrace, providing garbage cans are supplied.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that Mr. Hodlroft be notified of the above service.

From R. Dennis and J. Ross with respect to axes for 1927 on Lot 16, Block 142, D.L. 274.

Referred to the Assessor and Solicitor, for report.

From the City Solicitor, enclosing copy of letter from J. Heisterman, Forman and Company, advising that Mr. Lauderdale has decided not to re-purchase Lots 10 and 11, Block 231, D.L. 546.

Filed.

From the Secretary to General McRae, enclosing copy of report and findings of the Dominion Government Commission re First Narrows Bridge. Filed for reference.

From the City Collector, enclosing report of passenger receipts due the Pacific Great Eastern Railway for month of March, amount \$57.75.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Treasurer be and is hereby authorized to issue cheque in the amount of \$57.75 in settlement of above.

From D. Priestman, Secretary Juvenile Court Committee, enclosing copy of a resolution passed recently, that the Committee request the appointment of a full time Probation Officer.

Referred to Committee of the Whole.

From M.R. McMillan, Secretary Order of the Royal Purple, conveying appreciation for kind donation of shrubs.

Filed.

From District Forester, enclosing copy of Minutes of meeting held April 4th re watershed fire patrol, the meeting having decided that the same organization and pro-rata arrangement as applied last year, be carried on this year.

From the Secretary, Board of School Trustees, favouring the re-enactment of the Curfew Bylaw.

Referred to Committee of the Whole.

From B.P.O.E. North Vancouver, thanking the Council for the use of Mahon Park for May Day Celebration and requesting the use of new Mahon Park if available to enlarge the Sports programme.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the above application for the use of New Mahon Park for May Day sports be referred to the Parks Committee with power to act.

From Jack L9outet & Company, offering on behalf o Mrs. Page to sell to the City that portion of Lot A adjoining Lots 14,, 15, 17, 18 and 19 for a sum equivalent to the taxes paid by her for the past 5 years, approximately \$40.00.

Moved by Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Irwin and resolved that the above offer be accepted, subject to the title being satisfactory.

From Jack Loutet, complaining of the condition of a building on Lot 49, Block 208, D.L. 545-6.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Irwin and resolved that the Building Inspector submit report on above.

From the Town Planning Commission applying for a grant of \$50.00 towards entertaining delegates to the Town Planning institute Convention to be held on May 26th, 27th and 28th.

Moved by Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that a grant of \$50.00 be made towards entertaining delegates to the Town Planning Institute Convention.

From the Town Planning Commission reporting that the Commission is having prepared a small scale copy of the Zoning map and suggesting that this be reproduced in colour with a copy of the Bylaw in the local press.

Moved by Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Irwin and resolved that the above recommendation be adopted.

From H. Nott and P. Hanlon applying for an improvement to the lane in Block 4, D.L. 547.

Referred to the Board of Works and Engineer for report.

From the Ratepayers Association, applying for the use of the Council Chamber, on the first Thursday of each month during the present year.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the above application be granted if satisfactory arrangements can be made with the Jubilee Celebration Committee.

From the Ratepayers Association, recommending a permanent sidewalk and road wherever possible and suggesting a cement sidewalk from Losndale to Mahon Park either 15th, 17th or 19th Street but preferably along 17th Street.

The engineer being present reported that the Board of Works have a report in tonight for a concrete sidewalk on 15th street, 15th Street being to grade.

The Clerk was instructed to nifty the Ratepayers Association accordingly.

From the Ratepayers Association, recommending the purchase of a small cement mixer for the purpose of putting in concrete sidewalks and that concrete sidewalks be put in by local day labour under the supervision of the Engineer. Referred to the Engineer for report.

From the Ratepayers Association, complaining of automobiles driving past street cars at a fast rate of speed.

Referred to the Police Commission for report.

From the Ratepayers Association, approving set assessment for industrial sites which should not be lower than present assessment and that provision be made for crossings for the City benefit, such assessment not to exceed 10 years. Referred to Committee of the Whole.

From the Ratepayers association, re tolls on Second Narrows Bridge, the attitude of the Association being that the Dominion Government or Harbour Board take

over the bridge, reimburse or guarantee capital expenditure, operate and maintain the bridge and remove the tolls, making the bridge a first class highway.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley: and resolved that the Clerk write the Ratepayers Association explaining the position; that the Dominion Government has refused to take over the bridge their contention being that it is purely a Provincial Government matter, that the Harbour Board are not interested except in so far as the Railway portion is concerned.

From the City Engineer, recommending that authority be granted to have the grandstand in Mahon Park re-shingled, estimated cost \$270.00.

Moved by Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the above report be received and adopted and the work authorized.

From the City Engineer, recommending that the old Board of Works runabout be used in connection with Rice Lake work that an allowance of \$50.00 be made the Whereupon and charge to Rice Lake Construction.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the above report and recommendation be received and adopted.

From the City Engineer, recommending that offers be invited for dead and fallen trees on District lots 856 and 857, tenderer to state price per cord, the area to be cut over, the quantity to be removed and tem required to remove, subject to the approval of the Engineer.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the above matter of sale of cordwood on D.L. 856 and 857 be referred to the Engineer with power to act.

From the City Engineer, reporting on the Keith Road and Ridgeway Avenue storm sewer from St. Andrew's to 11th Street. Total cost \$15,040.00, owners' portion \$6,927.50, City's portion \$8,112.50, 20 annual instalments, rate per foot front per annum \$0.072.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the above report be received and adopted and the necessary procedure proceeded with.

From the City Engineer, reporting with respect to connecting Lots 20, 21 and 22, Block 64, D.L. 271 with sanitary sewer.

The above report was laid on the table for two weeks for further report to include Block 65.

From the City Engineer on behalf of the Board of Works, reporting that sidewalks have already been authorized on the north side of Esplanade form St. George's to St. Patrick's; East side of Lonsdale from 2nd to 3rd; East side of Lonsdale from 11th to 140' south of 14th Street; west side of Lonsdale in front of Lot 11/38/548; total estimated cost \$9,664.25.

Also recommending sidewalks on the following streets:

South side of 4th Street from Lonsdale to St. Andrew's South side of 3rd Street from Chesterfield to Mahon North side of 3rd Street from Chesterfield to Mahon South side of 3rd Street from St. George's to St. David's South side of 15th Street from Lane west of Lonsdale to Jones North side of 15th Street from Lonsdale to Chesterfield North side of 15th Street from Mahon to Jones North side of 23rd Street from Losndale to Mahon West side of Lonsdale from 3rd to 8th Street

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the above report and recommendation be received and necessary procedure authorized with the addition of a concrete walk on the north side of 3rd Street from St. George's to St. Patrick's.

From the Vancouver Oil Company, inquiring if any other Bylaws are likely to be submitted during the next few months.

Referred to Committee of the Whole.

From the City Solicitor re agreement with Yorke & Son with respect to the siding and Y track at the foot of Chesterfield.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that an account be forwarded Messrs. Yorke & Son for any rental not paid.

From Caroline Cravetto, requesting approval of proposed subdivision of Lots 17, 18 and 19, Block 124, D.L. 271.

Referred to Committee of the Whole.

From Kathleen Tener, advising having disposed of all her right, title and interest in Lot 6, Block 36A, D.L. 550 to Sidney Humphreys requesting that deed be issued direct to him.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that this Council consent to the transfer by Kathleen Tener to Sidney Humphreys of purchase of Lot 6, Block 36A, D.L. 550, the Bylaw authorizing the sale not having yet bee passed.

Alderman Bridgman wished information with respect to the trouble between B.C. Mills Timber and Trading Company and the Harbour Board with reference to low level road.

Alderman Irwin reported that he and Mayor Morden had interviewed the interested parties; the matter is now in the hands of the Engineers of the B.C. Mills timber and Trading Company and the Harbour Board. The services of this Council have been offered if they can be of any use in settling the dispute.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that failing a settlement before next meeting f Council that the Solicitor report on necessary steps to be taken.

Reports and recommendations by the Finance, School, Police, Board of Works, Waterworks, Ferry, Fire and Light, Parks and Health Committees, on due accounts were submitted by the respective Chairmen and read to the meeting and the Treasurer was authorized to pay the accounts to the amounts following:

Finance School		\$899.76 \$2,509.88
Police		\$232.07
Board of Works	\$2908.38	
	<u>1773.13</u>	\$4,681.51
Waterworks	\$1353.38	
	<u>251.74</u>	\$1,605.12
Ferry	\$6726.65	
•	<u>5594.87</u>	\$12,321.52
Fire & Light		\$1,949.47
Parks	\$244.52	
	<u>68.01</u>	\$312.53
Health	\$593.05	
	91.81	
	<u>140.00</u>	\$824.86

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Irwin and resolved that the following report of the Board of Works Committee be adopted:

RECOMMEND that application for concrete pavement on south side of First Street from Lonsdale Avenue eastward, be laid over as there are no funds available for building a concrete pavement.

RECOMMEND that application of William Burrow to have lane improved in Block 168 be filed, s lane is now in passable condition.

RECOMMEND that application of Annette Clare for sidewalk on south side of Keith Road between Moody and Queensbury be laid over, as street is graded at this point and suitable for concrete walk.

RECOMMEND that application of F.R. Purvis to have boulders removed in front of residence $343-8^{th}$ Street East be not granted and Mr. Purvis notified that boulders taken from the lot and put on the boulevard should be removed by the owner of the lot.

RECOMMEND that application for a concrete sidewalk on 10th Street between St. George's and Ridgeway be laid over on account of the proposed construction of a sewer during the year, and owing to the fact that the street has not been graded.

RECOMMEND that Mr. J.B. Bennett be notified that boulders placed on the boulevard from the lot adjoining have to be removed by the owner of the lot.

RECOMMEND that the application of J. MacPherson be granted to have some gravelling done on 14th Street between St. Andrew's and Ridgeway.

RECOMMEND that application of H. Dix to have lane improved to 237 – 15th Street East be laid over, as the lane appears to be in good condition at the present time.

RECOMMEND that application of Henry Billyeald be granted to have lane opened at the rear of the lots on the west side of William Avenue between 14th and 15th Streets at an estimated cost of \$100.00.

RECOMMEND that application of Geoffrey L. Edwards be granted to have 19th Street roadway treated with asphalt during the summer months between Moody and Queensbury.

RECOMMEND that application of J.T. Medcalf be granted to have roadway constructed on 20th Street – Moody Avenue east a distance of 200 feet, at an estimated cost of \$1200.00.

RECOMMEND that application of E.M.A. Radcliffe be granted to have some gravel placed on 22nd Street from St. Andrew's aVenue west to house No. 233.

RECOMMEND that the application of William Bow be granted to improve the corner of 29th Street and Tempe Crescent to give him access to a garage providing he dedicates to the City a corner of Lot 100, as shown on the sketch accompanying his application.

RECOMMEND that application of J.A. McCance, 429 – 27th Street West be granted, to have the roadway improved form Jones Avenue west a distance of about 300 feet to above address, the large boulders to be taken out of the roadway and the roadway regarded.

RECOMMEND that the application of Arthur Blackburn and others be granted to have the lane cleared and graded in Block 18, D.L. 549 a distance of 550 feet, at an estimated cost of \$2350.00.

RECOMMEND that the application of James Rodgers be granted to have some gravel placed in the lane west of Mahon Avenue between 14th Street and 15th Street, and a culvert placed in the ditch on the south side of 15th Street to give access to said lane.

RECOMMEND that application of J. Pearson and others to have lane west of View Street and North of Larson Road improved, be filed as the lane is now in good condition.

Mayor Morden stated that somebody had interviewed him requesting an entrance to his property on Tempe Heights, that he had sent the party to interview the Chairman of the Board of Works.

The Chairman of the Board of Works reported that he had not seen the party referred to.

RECOMMEND that if the party can be found making the application, that work in giving an entrance up to \$35.00 be authorized.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the following report of the Ferry Committee be adopted:

RECOMMEND that a grant be authorized to May Day Celebration Committee of \$200.00.

RECOMMEND that the following tag days be authorized on the ferries;

Gleam of Hope Crippled Children's fund April 30th
Local Red Cross May 7th
Ladies Auxiliary N.V. Hospital June 11th

The Chairman reported have made a check on receipts at the weigh scales as follows:

Week ending April 2nd \$50.50 Week ending April 9th \$54.50 Week ending April 16th \$47.75

There would therefore be a profit in operating the scales besides having a check on heavy loads.

The Superintendent reported that the present coal contract expires on May 29th and suggesting that tenders be in for the first regular meeting in May.

RECOMMEND that the above report and recommendation be adopted and that tenders for furnishings one year's supply of coal for the ferries be received up to 4 p.m. on Monday, May 2nd.

The Superintendent submitted report of Captain King with reference to the drowning of a passenger who jumped overboard while crossing the Inlet on April 16 at 10:10 a.m. No. 3 ferry.

RECOMMEND that the above matter be referred to the Superintendent and Solicitor to procure evidence of witnesses and notify the Liability Company. The Superintendent reported having invited 8 different parties to quote on jerseys and trousers for deckhands, recommending that the offer of Mr. W.S. Mitchell for jerseys at \$4.50 each be accepted, his offer being the lowest and the article the most suitable.

RECOMMEND that the tender of W.S. Mitchell being the lowest for supplying jerseys for deck hands at the price of \$4.50 each be accepted.

The Committee inspected samples of cloth for trousers and recommend that 12 pairs of pants be purchased from Mr. Kennedy at the price of \$11.50 per pair.

The Superintendent reported that with a view to remedying present condition that exists on the Vancouver wharf where the west approach joins the concrete wharf, he had asked for price on a more suitable plate to cover the joints and enclosed quotations from Burrard Dry Dock Company and Maple Leaf Iron Works.

RECOMMEND that the tender of Maple Leaf Iron Works for supplying two steel cover plates at the price of \$75.00 each be accepted, their tender being the lowest.

RECOMMEND that the Superintendent be authorized to proceed with the work of erecting a garage on the Vancouver wharf to be rented to E.J. Gillett \$5.00 per month in advance, cost of material \$65.00, work to be done by the Ferry staff.

RECOMMEND that the question of laying san-san flooring be laid over for three months.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Irwin and resolved that the following report of the Finance Committee be adopted:

RECOMMEND that the distribution of schedule of insurance be referred to the Association to ascertain if Mr. D.H. McColl complies with the necessary requirements.

The relief officer reported having received tow applications for rooms in the old man's home corner 1^{st} and Mahon, one to T. Hurley who has occupied room at $174 - 2^{nd}$ Street West for 15 years, the other Sam McHugh a resident of North Vancouver for over 20 years, both these men will pay rent if possible.

RECOMMEND that Hurley and McHugh be permitted to occupy one room each in the premises corner 1st and Mahon, they to pay rent if possible.

RECOMMEND that matter of arrears under Better Housing be referred to the Solicitor.

The Chairman reported with references to Trades Licenses, so far up to date \$2,400.00 has been collected. Full report will be made two weeks from tonight.

RECOMMEND that the account of Shoemaker, McLean & Veitch for supplying financial statement at the price of \$125.00 net be paid.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the following report of the Parks Committee be adopted:

Letter was received from the Horticultural Association, dated April 18th outlining proposal re lease of Horticultural premises for a period of 10 years, rental \$100.00 per month returnable as a grant.

A deputation from the Association was present, including Mr. Edwards and Mr. Alexander.

RECOMMEND the favourable consideration of a lease to be drawn by the Solicitor along the lines of the letter form the Horticultural Association, deleting the terms of lease by the Association to the Bowling Club.

The Engineer reported recommending that tenders be invited for yearly supply of bedding plants, estimated cost \$80.00, 100 flats, to be delivered at Victoria Park when required.

RECOMMEND that tenders be invited for supplying bedding plants from local firms.

Re use of New Mahon Park by the Cricket Club.

The Chairman reported that the Cricket Club have made a large number of dates for the present season and that it seems to be necessary for them to have the use of New Mahon Park for this year only. The cricket club deputation stated to him that they would not require the new Park after 1927.

RECOMMEND that the Cricket Club be granted the use of New Mahon Park for the season 1927 as arranged verbally with the Chairman, providing the ground is not required after this year, the Engineer to take off the sharp edge of the bank, the ire rope and posts to be taken down and put up again at the end of the Cricket season.

RECOMMEND that applications for picnics at Mahon Park be referred to the Parks Committee with power to act.

RECOMMEND that the application of All Canadian Amusements Ltd., be laid over until further information is supplied.

RECOMMEND that Mr. Felton be notified that the Council is prepared to allow him the use of the Tourist camp or that he may be permitted t sublet

if he ahs a suitable tenant. Failing his making satisfactory arrangements by May 15th, that the City will take steps to make use of the Refreshment stand and camp.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the following report of the Waterworks Committee be adopted:

The Engineer verbally reported that the road to Rice Lake is ready and requesting authority to proceed with Rice Lake Reservoir construction. RECOMMEND that the Engineer be authorized to proceed with work at Rice Lake the lumber to be purchased from amongst the local mills, at best possible prices.

Moved by Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Irwin and resolved that the following report of the Fire and Light Committee be adopted:

RECOMMEND that prices be called for 500 feet of fire hose and 11 uniforms and extra pants.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Local Improvement Debenture Consolidation Bylaw 1927" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the above Bylaw as read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal. No. 836.

Moved by Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The North Vancouver General Hospital Confirmation of Agreement Bylaw 1927" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the above Bylaw as read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal. No. 837.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "Eight and Tenth Street (Lonsdale to Ridgeway) Sanitary Sewer Initiative Bylaw 1927" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Eight and Tenth Street (Lonsdale to Ridgeway) Sanitary Sewer Initiative Bylaw 1927" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "Eight and Tenth Street (Lonsdale to Ridgeway) Sanitary Sewer Initiative Bylaw 1927" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Eight and Tenth Street (Lonsdale to Ridgeway) Sanitary Sewer Initiative Bylaw 1927" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "Eleventh Street (Lonsdale to Queensbury) Sanitary Sewer Initiative Bylaw 1927" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Irwin and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Eleventh Street (Lonsdale to Queensbury) Sanitary Sewer Initiative Bylaw 1927" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "Eleventh Street (Lonsdale to Queensbury) Sanitary Sewer Initiative Bylaw 1927" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Eleventh Street (Lonsdale to Queensbury) Sanitary Sewer Initiative Bylaw 1927" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "Chesterfield Avenue (19th to 22nd) Sanitary Sewer Initiative Bylaw 1927" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Irwin and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Chesterfield Avenue (19th to 22nd) Sanitary Sewer Initiative Bylaw 1927" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "Chesterfield Avenue (19th to 22nd) Sanitary Sewer Initiative Bylaw 1927" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Chesterfield Avenue (19th to 22nd) Sanitary Sewer Initiative Bylaw 1927" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Irwin and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Curfew Bylaw 1927" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Curfew Bylaw 1927" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time and amended by adding in Clause 5 "over the age of 21 years".

Moved by Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Irwin and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Curfew Bylaw 1927" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Curfew Bylaw 1927" as amended be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Bee Regulation Bylaw 1927" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the

occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Irwin and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Bee Regulation Bylaw 1927" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time, and Clause 2 thereof amended to read "Distance of less than 23 feet" etc.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Bee Regulation Bylaw 1927" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Bee Regulation Bylaw 1927" be now read a third time as amended.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Irwin and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Pool Room Regulation Bylaw 1927" and that the said Bylaw receive two readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such two readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Pool Room Regulation Bylaw 1927" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Chairman of Publicity be authorized to spend \$300.00 advertising in the Vancouver newspapers in cooperation with West Vancouver, also \$100.00 for distribution of folders.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Irwin and resolved that this Council do now proceed to resolve itself into Committee of the Whole. Alderman Irwin was appointed Chairman.

IN COMMITTEE

IN COUNCIL

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the above report and recommendation of the Committee of the Whole be adopted.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Blacksmith be increased \$5.00 per month as from April 1st, Board of Works teamster increased \$2.50 per month. Matter of sub-foremen was referred to the Board of Works for further report.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Chairman of the Board of Works Committee be a Committee of one to interview the Workmen's Compensation board with respect to operation to the Blacksmith, supported by such information as can be secured by the Engineer.

At 12:25 a.m. it was moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the meeting adjourn.

Whereupon the meeting adjourned.

Signed: G.H. Morden, Mayor